
Municipal Facilities Review Committee       Draft Minutes 
January 25, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 
 

Town of Swanzey, New Hampshire 

Municipal Facilities Review Committee (MFRC) 

Meeting Minutes – January 25, 2016 
Note: Minutes are not final until reviewed and approved by the Committee. Review and approval of minutes generally takes place at the 

next regularly scheduled meeting of the Committee. 

Call to Order: 
The regular meeting of the Municipal Facilities Review Committee was called to order at 4:00 p.m. by Chairman 
Don Skiba.   
 
Committee Members Present:  Chair Skiba, Glenn Page, Wally Smith, Charlie Sheaff, Planning and Community 
Development Director Sara Carbonneau, Steve Bittel, and Keith Thibault. 
 
Absent:  Scott Self 
 
Others Present:  
Town Administrator Michael Branley, Code Enforcement Officer Mike Jasmin 
 
Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes:  Minutes of January 11, 2016 were considered.  Page moved to accept 
the minutes of January 11, 2016. Seconded by Smith and all were in favor. Motion passed.  
 
Marketing of the Proposal 

 Discussion on the brochure handout. There was discussion about the brochure wording. Carbonneau 
suggested changes and asked to remove one paragraph beginning “At today’s low rates….” and move it 
to the last page. Jasmin suggested moving the copy to the last page and put the money discussion at the 
end to supplement the Costs of Financing section. There was some discussion about changes made to 
the dollar figures provided by Bittel. Skiba suggested a bi-fold brochure. Carbonneau suggested that the 
figures might confuse the voters. The idea is that some people will stop reading if the language is too 
technical. Jasmin said he thought the word “inflation” might be misunderstood. Skiba made the point 
that Capital Reserves are not suitable for new construction. Thibault suggested using bullet points on 
the first page so that readers will see the important points right away. 
 
Sheaff mentioned that last year only the fire station was addressed. He suggested that it be noted that 
all the facilities are covered with this bond. Sheaff suggested referencing last year’s vote on the 
proposed fire station and how the voters defeated the bond. He asked to add, “last year we asked for 
4.5 million to build a new fire station, this year we are asking for $5.5 million for all the facilities.” Jasmin 
suggested a chart. Smith said he didn’t like bringing up the failure of the last bond. It was suggested:  
“Last year the voters spoke turning down a fire station at $4.5 million. We listened; we cut back the fire 
station square footage and we addressed all the primary service facilities for $5.5 million.” 
Thibault suggested replacing the title word “Spend” with “Invest”. The Committee agreed. Smith said 
that the last page is important because it addresses what the cost will be for a $100,000 house. Smith 
asked to include the risk insurance increase line to add and/or cancellation/non-renewal. 
 
Page suggested:  “the energy savings alone will cover the cost of borrowing” to replace “may cover the 
estimated $6,000 bond annual debt service for the $90,000 being borrowed” in the DPW section. Bittel 
mentioned the savings may be greater because of insulation.  
 



Municipal Facilities Review Committee       Draft Minutes 
January 25, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 
 

There was a discussion about identifying facilities by either “personnel” or “office”. Skiba said that he 
had accepted Bittel’s changes and he would verify that they were added. Thibault suggested that the 
“Costs of Financing” section be put at the beginning of the document. It was suggested to remove the 30 
years financing and the Committee agreed.  

 
Motion by Sheaff to accept the content of the brochure with the proposed changes to be made 
as final document, second by Page, and there was no further discussion. All were in favor. 
Motion passed. 

 
Open House Saturday – Skiba, Bittel, Page, Smith, Branley, Carbonneau will be present and Thibault will 
be here for part of the event. Skiba spoke about putting drawings on poster board for the event. He also 
noted he will add bullet points for each facility. Carbonneau noted that the experts for each facility 
should be present at the appropriate facility. 
 
Jasmin said that the space below Town Hall is not a legal space and should not be used for meeting. 
Skiba said that the conference room below that is part of the Fire Department and can be used for 
discussion not for the planned presentation for Open House. There was a discussion about where to 
have flip charts for the drawings – one will be at each facility and one at Town Hall. 
 
Jasmin spoke about work to be done at the Recycling Center. Jasmin also spoke about the roof at DPW 
and the structural integrity of the building. There was a discussion about insulation and other possible 
efficiencies to not add any weight to the roof. Bittel suggested checking the Select Board minutes for 
details about who did the work in the past. Jasmin said that the issue with the roof is a maintenance 
issue. Page noted that corrugated sheets are replaceable. Skiba said he could put a picture of the clear 
span structure on a chart of DPW and could add a photo of a trailer/office. Branley said he would speak 
to Director of Recycling Bob Osterhout about the possibility of folks stopping by. 
 

Adjournment: 
A motion to adjourn was made by Sheaff with a second from Carbonneau and all were in favor. Adjournment 
occurred at 5:17 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
Beverly Bernard, Recording Secretary 


